MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

100B Drakes Landing Road, Suite 250, Greenbrae, CA 94904

Website: www.marinhealthcare.org

Telephone: 415-464-2090 Fax: 415-464-2094

Email: info@marinhealthcare.org

TUESDAY, MARCH 10, 2015

CLOSED MEETING @ 5:30 PM
SPECIAL OPEN MEETING / BOARD STUDY SESSION @ 6:00 PM
REGULAR OPEN MEETING @ 7:00 PM

Board of Directors

Chair: Harris Simmonds, MD

Vice Chair: Ann Sparkman, JD Secretary: Jennifer Rienks, PhD Directors: Larry Bedard, MD

Jennifer Hershon, RN, MSN

Location:

Marin General Hospital, Conference Ctr

250 Bon Air Road Greenbrae, CA 94904

Staff:

Lee Domanico, CEO

Colin Coffey, District Counsel Louis Weiner, Executive Assistant

REVISED AGENDA

Tab#

CLOSED MEETING, 5:30 PM

Call to Order
 Roll Call
 Simmonds

3. General Public Comment Simmonds

Any member of the audience may make statements regarding any items on the agenda. Statements are limited to a Maximum of three (3) minutes. Please state and spell your name if you wish it to be recorded in the minutes.

4. Closed Session Simmonds

a. Conference with real estate negotiators, Gov't Code Section 54956.8 regarding negotiations with Marin County re terms of location of new Hillside Garage lot boundary. Negotiators: Domanico, Friedenberg

Domanico/ Friedenberg

5. Adjournment of Closed Session

SPECIAL OPEN MEETING / BOARD STUDY SESSION, 6:00 PM

 Call to Order
 Roll Call
 Update on Hospital Replacement Project
 Jason Haim/ Kevin Coss

4. General Public Comment

Simmonds tements are limited

Any member of the audience may make statements regarding any items on the agenda. Statements are limited to a Maximum of three (3) minutes. Please state and spell your name if you wish it to be recorded in the minutes.

5. Adjournment of Special Open Meeting / Board Study Session

MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

100B Drakes Landing Road, Suite 250, Greenbrae, CA 94904

Telephone: 415-464-2090 Fax: 415-464-2094 Email: info@marinhealthcare.org

Website: www.marinhealthcare.org

TUESDAY, MARCH 10, 2015

CLOSED MEETING @ 5:30 PM
SPECIAL OPEN MEETING / BOARD STUDY SESSION @ 6:00 PM
REGULAR OPEN MEETING @ 7:00 PM

REVISED AGENDA

Tab#

Simmonds

All

REGULAR MEETING, 7:00 PM

1. Call to Order Simmonds 2. Roll Call Simmonds Simmonds 3. General Public Comment Any member of the audience may make statements regarding any items NOT on the agenda. Statements are limited to a Maximum of three (3) minutes. Please state and spell your name if you wish it to be recorded in the minutes. 4. Approval of Agenda (action) Simmonds 5. Approval of Consent Agenda a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 10, 2015 (action) Simmonds #1 6. Safety Update Domanico 7. Nomination: Andrea Schultz for MGH Board of Directors Membership (action) Domanico #2 8. Review and Approve MGH Funding Request (action) Domanico #3 9. MHD Board Retreat, March 20, 2015 Rienks 10. Committee Meeting Reports a. MHD Finance and Audit Committee (to meet on 3/24/15) Bedard b. MHD Lease and Building Committee (to meet on 3/25/15) Sparkman 111. Reports Domanico a. District CEO's Report b. Hospital CEO's Report Domanico

d. Board Members' Reports12. Adjournment of Regular Meeting

c. Chair's Report

Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, April 14, 2015 @ 7:00 p.m.

Tab 1



MARIN HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

100-B Drakes Landing Road, Suite 250 Greenbrae, CA 94904

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Tuesday, February 10, 2015

Marin General Hospital, Conference Center

1. Call to Order

Chair Simmonds called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm

2. Roll Call

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair Harris Simmonds, MD; Vice Chair Ann Sparkman; Secretary Jennifer Rienks; Director Larry Bedard, MD, Director Jennifer Hershon

ALSO PRESENT: Lee Domanico, Chief Executive Officer; Colin Coffey, District Counsel; Louis Weiner, Executive Assistant to the Boards

3. General Public Comment

Cindy Winter of Greenbrae commented on traffic, bicycle and pedestrian route plans for the new hospital.

Barb Ryan, RN, CNA chief nurse representative, stated that she had sent an email message today to the Board members regarding the pay of nurses participating at the bargaining table.

Counsel Coffey reported that a Closed Session was held prior to this Open Session, and that no reportable action was taken.

4. Safety Update

CEO Domanico recounted an incident in Emergency where an Environmental Services employee came to the direct quick assistance of a patient in distress, underscoring that non-clinical people also help to strengthen the culture of patient safety.

Public comment: none.

5. Approval of Agenda

Secretary Rienks moved to approve the agenda as presented. Director Hershon seconded. Vote: all ayes.



6. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 13, 2015

Vice Chair Sparkman moved to approve the minutes as presented. Director Bedard seconded. Vote: all ayes.

7. Nomination of Andrea Schultz for MGH Board of Directors Membership

CEO Domanico reported that the MHD-MGH Joint Nominating Committee, on which Chair Simmonds and Director Bedard serve, interviewed Andrea Schultz on her application for membership on the Marin General Hospital Board of Directors. The Committee was unanimous in their recommendation to the MGH Board and, at their meeting of February 3, 2015, the MGH Board voted to recommend that the MHD Board approve her acceptance.

There was extended discussion supporting Andrea Shultz's qualifications: She has served on the MGH Foundation since the June 2010 transfer (as Chair since 2012) and thus is involved in raising funds for the new hospital, has attended the MGH Board meetings regularly, is a major business and philanthropy leader in the Marin community, is a successful fund-raiser, has an important perspective on the needs of the Marin community, etc.

It was noted that the MGH Bylaws stipulate that, after a nominee is recommended by the MGH Board, there be a 20-day review period before the MHD Board acts on that recommendation, and that in this case that review period was not satisfied. It was thus agreed that this will be included on the agenda and voted upon at the next regular meeting of the MHD Board.

Public comments: none.

8. Community Member Appointment to Board Committees

a. Bylaw Revision and Conflict of Interest Questionnaire

Counsel Coffey noted that this Conflict of Interest Disclosure form (Tab #3 in the packet) is the same as used by the MGH Board.

Discussion ensued as to whether community members applying for membership on a Board Committee would be required to be a resident of the District or of the County. Chair Simmonds urged to require residency in the District, and that the Board could choose to make an exception if desired. Counsel Coffey suggested adding, in the MHD Bylaws Article V, Section 1(c), the statement "Community Members shall be residents of the District." The entire Article V, Section 1(c) would thus read:

(c) Each Committee, Standing or Ad Hoc, shall be assigned two (2) District Directors, one of whom shall be the committee chair. Up to three non-District Board Directors, ("Community Members") may be appointed as advisory members of the committee, and they will serve without a vote. Community Members shall be residents of the District. Community Members may be recommended to the District Board Chair by the Committee Chair, or any other



source within the District or MGH organizations, or the community. Proposed Community Members shall be interviewed by the Board or Committee Chair, or both, and shall submit a curriculum vitae for Board review. The Board will act upon the recommendation for appointment coming from the Board Chair for a term subject to annual renewal when Committee appointments are approved as provided in Section 1 (a) above. Upon appointment and upon any annual renewal of appointment, Community Members shall submit a Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement to the District. The Board Chair shall be an ex officio member of Standing Committees, but may vote only if an actual member of the committee.

Public comment: none.

Secretary Rienks moved to amend the Bylaws as presented by Counsel Coffey. Vice Chair Sparkman seconded. Vote: all ayes.

b. Approval of Committee Appointments

Chair Simmonds reported that Mr. Jud Goldsmith has been attending meetings of the Lease & Building Committee and the Finance & Audit Committee as a Community Member, and should like to continue attending only the Lease & Building Committee meetings as such. Dr. Simmonds recommended this with the requirement that Mr. Goldsmith submit the Conflict of Interest Disclosure form.

Public comment: none.

Chair Simmonds moved to appoint Mr. Jud Goldsmith as a Community Member of the Lease & Building Committee, on the condition he submit the Conflict of Interest Disclosure. Secretary Rienks seconded. Vote: all ayes.

9. Review and approve Vascular Coverage Services Agreement with Stanford

CEO Domanico explained that Dr. Laura Pak is the only vascular surgeon on active staff, is our busiest surgeon, is overworked, and is in need of another vascular surgeon to satisfy the current surgical caseload, ER call coverage, and growth demand. Highly qualified vascular surgeons are few and, after negotiations with Stanford Hospital and Clinics, a physician has been chosen and has agreed to join Dr. Pak's practice (Sirona Vascular Center, a 1206(b) clinic of the Marin Healthcare District) full time.

This agreement is with Stanford Hospital and Clinics to allow the physician to retain their academic affiliation with Stanford University School of Medicine. Chair Simmonds stated that he has examined the Fair Market Value analysis of this agreement and expressed satisfaction with the terms. Being on a different fiscal cycle, the cost of this agreement is not budgeted for, and the hospital will cover the shortfall. The vascular surgeon to be engaged via this agreement was identified as Dr. Tina Desai.



The MGH Board of Directors voted unanimously to recommend approval of this agreement at its meeting February 3, 2015.

Public comment: none.

Secretary Rienks moved to approve the Professional Services Agreement with Stanford Hospital and Clinics, as presented. Vice Chair Sparkman seconded. Vote: all ayes.

10. Consider MHD Board Regular Meetings, change to 6:00 pm call to order

After discussion of the call-to-order time of the Regular Meetings of the Board, it was agreed to retain the 7:00 pm time.

11. Discuss MHD Board Retreat, March 20, 2015

The MHD Board of Directors Retreat will be on Friday, March 20, 2015, 12 noon to 5:00 pm. Chair Simmonds asked Secretary Rienks to head the planning committee; she accepted and will choose another Director for the committee.

Public comment: none.

Chair Simmonds moved to form an ad hoc Retreat Planning Committee. Vice Chair Sparkman seconded. Vote: all ayes.

12. Update on the Planning Commission/Parking Structure

Kevin Coss, lead project consultant, stated that this presentation will include Site Circulation in addition to the Planning Commission report.

The project group presented to the Planning Commission yesterday. The Planning Commission requires 12 changes, and so far 10 of them can be satisfied, including the required solar panels on the garage roof, pedestrian passage on the hill, earth removal schedule, parking space adjustment, wall placement, fence height, et al. Public Works will determine schedule of earth removal traffic, which will have a financial impact to be determined. Planning Commissioners have agree to join 1 or 2 working sessions with the project group in advance of the formal submission of plans at the next regular Planning Commission meeting. The goal is to break ground in April.

The Marin IJ reported today on yesterday's Planning Commission meeting, and Kevin clarified and corrected a few points made in the article.

Suzanne Jaggers and Darren Graves of Perkins Eastman/LBL Architects presented a slide show (posted on the MHD web site) showing site development modifications. Design Development process is 95% complete. Modifications to the parking structure include addition of pedestrian sidewalk, revision of retaining wall and landscape scheme, and coordination of vehicle entrances. Signalized crosswalk is proposed, and bus stops adjusted. Pedestrian and bicycle circulation modification is drafted, bike racks added, and required vehicle parking counts have been verified.



The two-tiered retaining wall on the south side varies from 4 feet high at its lowest point to 40 feet high at its highest, with a walk path along it. Vegetation will eventually cover it. Bike racks will accommodate 120 bikes, more than the required 20; bike parking within the garage may be included.

Public comments: Cindy Williams remarked on bicycle accommodation, and on the signalized crosswalk. Margaret Jones commented on pedestrian pathway safety and comfort.

13. Discuss Charitable Contribution Ad Hoc Committee

It was agreed that, rather than forming an ad hoc committee, the Lease & Building Committee would make the subject of charitable contributions a part of their responsibility.

14. Discussion of Bad Debt Trends

CEO Domanico remarked on the impact Covered California is having on bad debt, with more people being covered. MGH average bad debt expense as a percent of net revenue has gone down from 1.1% in 2013 to 0.5% in 2014.

15. Committee Meeting Reports

a. MHD Finance and Audit Committee

Director Bedard reported that the next meeting will be on March 24, 2015.

b. MHD Lease and Building Committee

Vice Chair Sparkman reported that the Committee met last week on February 4. Bylaws were reviewed as to the charge of the Committee. Discussed the role of the Committee in the Hospital Replacement Project. Discussed the MHD-MGH lease that becomes effective December 2, 2015. In the fall, Counsel Don Bouey will meet with them to advise on the monitoring of the lease terms, a requirement of this Committee.

16. Reports

a. District CEO's Report

CEO Domanico reported there is no change from the preliminary financial numbers reported last month.

b. Hospital CEO's Report

Today CEO Domanico received notice of OSHPD approval for 4 additional ICU beds, after a 2-year application process. Housewide inpatient average daily census remains steadily high since November, averaging 121 in January and 115 so far in February. MGH continues a strategic relationship with Sonoma Valley Hospital, working with Prima Medical Foundation providing specialists. MGH has received the top "A" Grade for Hospital Safety for 2014 from The Leapfrog Group.

Public comment: none



c. Chair's Report

Chair Simmonds had nothing additional to report.

d. Board members' reports

Director Bedard reported that Assemblyman Marc Levine this week introduced AB 258, legislation prohibiting organ transplant patients from being discriminated against for the use of medicinal marijuana. He also expressed praise for MGH's "Healing Place" advertising and publicity campaign.

Secretary Rienks reported that the recent MGH Labor and Delivery program reconfiguration has reduced the C-section occurrence rate for private pay women. Staff physician Dr. Malini Nijagal wrote a paper on this, presented it at a major conference, and won a top award. Publicity for this is in process.

17. Adjournment of Regular Meeting

Chair Simmonds moved to adjourn the meeting. Vice Chair Sparkman seconded. Vote: all ayes. Meeting adjourned at 8:32 pm.

Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, March 10, 2015 at 7:00 pm.

Tab 2

Andrea Schultz

RECEIVED

JAN 1 4 2015

MARIN HEALTHCARE
DISTRICT

MGH Board of Directors Candidate Application Form

Marin General Hospital

Board of Directors Candidate Application
(PLEASE ATTACH A COPY OF YOUR RESUME TO THIS APPLICATION)

Date	e <u>January 14, 20</u>	15	_	
Nan	ne Andrea		Schultz	Andrea
	First	MI	Last	Familiar name
	dence ress <u>50 Bon Air Cen</u>	ter. Suite 200 Gree	enbrae CA 94904	
	e (415) 461.0200			,
Emp	oloyer			
Name	e <u>Greenbrae M</u>	anagement, Inc.		
Your	title President &	CEO		
Addr	ess50 Bon Air (Greenbrae, CA 94904	
	e (work) <u>(415)</u> 461.0			
	ilas@bonair.	<u> </u>		
Prefe	-	nic contact: (X) Work () Residence	
Plea	ase list Boards and o	committees that	t you serve on, or have se	rved on (husiness
			onal, recreational, religious, so	
	Organization		Role/Title	Dates of Service
2. 7 3. 1 4. 1 5. 1 6. 1	Marin General Hospital I The Schultz Foundation Bank of Marin – Marin Marin Row Association Marin Council – Boy Sco Dominican College Boy Scouts of America –	outs of America	Chair Chair/President Advisory Committee Junior Fundraising Chai Board Advisory Board Exec Officer-Charter Officer-Chair	1996 - 1997 1995 - 1997 rg. 2004 - Present
8.]	Kentfield School District	;	Various	1995 - 1998

Education/Training/Certificates

BA – Business Administration - WSU

- Various Enrichment Courses

capacity that allows me to bring the best of my the Operating Board. By adding an au courant the Board, I hope to provide constructive and p wellspring of life is good health and excellent h	highlights my desire to serve on the Board of MGH in a skills, knowledge and experience to enrich discussions of voice with grass-roots community views and perceptions to productive input. In a county rich with opportunities, the healthcare services. Joining the Board at this time in its will hopefully allow me to participate in making the vision			
Skills, experience/expertise (Please circ	le all that apply}			
Healthcare	Education, instruction			
Finance, accounting	Special events			
Personnel, human resources	Philanthropy/Fundraising			
Administration, management	Outreach, advocacy			
Nonprofit experience	Other			
Community service	Other			
Legal	Other			
Policy development				
Public relations, communications				
Provide one or two examples of the skills, exp	perience and expertise that you mentioned above. For			
example, in what capacity did you acquire and/or apply those skills:				
As President and CEO of Greenbrae Management	t, Inc., I deal on a daily basis with HR / Personnel, Public			
Relations, Management and finance issues while overseeing all aspects of a Commercial Shopping Center, along				
with other Properties in our portfolio. Within the	Family Foundation, I work in concert with a Board for the			
purposes of identifying philanthropic opportunities	s and events to participate in and support within our community.			
Please list other information relative to your General Hospital.	interest in applying for a Board position with Marin			
-				
My lamily has a long-standing connection with Ma	arin General Hospital which I hope will continue.			

ANDREA SCHULTZ

Andrea Schultz is the President and CEO of GREENBRAE MANAGEMENT, INC., headquartered in Greenbrae, California. Greenbrae Management, Inc. is a commercial, office and multiresidential property management firm. Established in 1990, the company is privately held.

Ms. Schultz has served as President and CEO of Greenbrae Management, Inc., since 2006. Prior to her role as President and CEO at Greenbrae Management, Ms. Schultz served as their Vice President and Senior Manager, rounding out her over 25 years with the firm.

She joined the Marin General Hospital Foundation Board as Vice Chair in February 2010. Since 2012, she serves as Chair raising funds for programs, generating awareness and promoting its mission of inspiring philanthropy for the benefit of Marin General Hospital. The MGHF was established in 1961 and is continuing to flourish today.

In addition to her business activities, since 2004, Ms. Schultz has directed The Schultz Foundation as its Chair and President. The Schultz Foundation is an active foundation dedicated to enriching the surrounding community through its philanthropy and participation in local events.

Before beginning her family, Ms. Schultz gained experience working with a management consulting firm, advertising agency and franchise consulting firm, which allowed her to further broaden her business foundation.

Ms. Schultz currently sits on the Community Advisory Committee of the Bank of Marin and has done so since 2010. The Bank of Marin is a leading business and community bank in the San Francisco Bay Area, founded in 1989.

Other previous community-focused work for Ms. Schultz includes sitting on the Board of the Marin Council of the Boy Scouts of America, the Advisory Board of Dominican College, as a Fundraising Chair of the Marin Row Association Junior Program and various roles within the Kentfield School District.

Ms. Schultz holds a BA in Business Administration from WSU. She has studied and immersed herself in a wide variety of other enrichment courses both locally and internationally. She has a voracious appetite for learning, travel, and is dedicated to her thriving family, to her community and to partnering to bring excellent healthcare to her township.

Tab 3





Option 1

Operational Expense of \$200,000.

Marin General Hospital's Customer Experience Program is our 2015 project to build on our continual Consumer Experience focus.

In addition to improved patient satisfaction, this program will also result in improved employee engagement and physician satisfaction scores.

Option 2

Capital Expense of \$180,000.

We have selected The Giraffe* infant Warmer from our list of Patient Safety capital request items.

This warmer helps provide a nurturing, life-sustaining environment that fosters growth and is designed to:

- Direct the heat to the infant, and not the caregiver
- Provide easy access for our patients
- Give us more room to work
- Be simple and easy to use